
Town of Minnesott Beach

Board of Commissioners, Meeting

August 13, 2019

Minutes

The meeting of the Board of Commissioners (BOC), Town of Mimesott Beach, WaS held

Tuesday August 13, 2019 at 7:00 P.M at the Mimesott Beach Town Hall・

Board members present: Mayor Fowler’Commissioner Adam Garfinkel, Commissioner

Cliff Braly, Commissioner Starr Muaphy and Commissioner Pete Hall.

Others present: Town Manager Carolyn Braly, Town Clerk Doma Scott’and approximately

1 00 residents of Mirmesott Beach.

Mayor Fowler called the meeting to order at 7:00pm with a moment ofsilence and led

everyone in the pledge ofallegiance to the flag.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to the August 13, 2019 agenda.

Commissioner Hall moved to accept the agenda. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler called for any discussion or revision to July 9, 2019 minutes. Commissioner

Braly moved to approve the minutes. All ayes.

Public Hearing for the acquisition of property: Mayor Fowler asked for a motion to go

into the Public Hearing. Commissioner Braly moved to go into Public Hearing. All ayes.

Mayor Fowler read the rules for the Public Hearing: The Public Hearing is an opportunity

for public comment on the proposed acquisition ofreal property. He thanked everyone for

coming to the town,s commissioners’meeting tonight. Public comments wi11 be limited to

limited to Mimesott Beach residents and property owners. He asked that before each spoke

to please state their name and property address. Speakers will be limited to 3 minutes.

Comments are to be directed to the full board and not to individual board members. The

Board of Commissioners are interested in hearing your comments regarding this proposal.

There were 21 speakers. A record oftheir comments is made apart ofthese minutes by

reference. 17 speakers were in favor ofthe proposal and 4 were against・ In addition, a letter

in opposition to the proposal was read into record and is made a part herein by reference.

All may be viewed at the Town Ha11.

At the conclusion ofthe public hearing, Mayor Fowler asked for a motion to go back into

the regular session・ Commissioner Braly moved to go back into regular session・ All ayes.

Discussion and vote on Acquisition of Real Property - Mayor Fowler asked for any

comments from the commissioners. Adam Garfinkel said he lives on the golf course, but

he said he did not see that placed him in a financially superior position than anyone else

in the room. He said言n the interest ofopen govemment, tranSParenCy and perceived

8/13/2019 BOC meeting



impropriety言`I will not be voting, but I stand with my fellow commissioners in whatever

decision they make. I will stand lock step with the other four members at this table; the

fact that I am not voting does not mean I don,t wholeheartedly support their decision・"

Commissioner Garfinkel said sound business judgements have been engaged in all

aspects; there have been no secret negotiations! Nobody stands to benefit financially with

this purchase. He said this is for the benefit ofthe town and he supports this proposal.

Commissioner Starr Murphy thanked everyone who attended. She said that of the people

she had contacted, it was 50鵜50 for and against the purchase. She said many folks she

talked with had asked what they, the residents, WOuld get out ofthis sale.

Commissioner Pete Hall said he thought the priorities were screwed up. He said he

thought the roads and drainage issues should be number one. Commissioner Hall said he

had a lot ofconcems about this proposal. He said he thought there was a way forward for

the town to negotiate through the lease. He said he would like to see a representative on

the board ofthe club and he added, “I’m still on the fence.”

Mayor Fowler asked for a motion to purchase the property. Commissioner Garfinkel

moved for the Town of Mimesott Beach to purchase the real property owned by the

Minnesott Golf & Country Club. He added, We are nOt PurChasing the golfclub, Only the

real property.

Mayor Fowler asked for a11 in favor to raise their right hand. No one raised their hand・

Mayor Fowler declared the motion did not carry. Mayor Fowler recessed the meeting to

move out ofthe garage back inside the Town Ha11.

Town Manager,s report: There are 3 approved zoning application‥ 151 Pinewood for an

oflframe modular home; Becca Lang for a new house on Chicory Lane in Arlington Place;

and Claudia Beland for a fence at lO4 Best Lane.

Commissioner Hall asked why Jeff Bland, Zoning Administrator, did not receive pay for his

work? Town Manager reported Jeffdoes not submit a time sheet’that he does this as a

service to the town. Commissioner Hall asked why are we budgeting something for him?

Mayor Fowler said this was started a long time ago and that he could charge us, but he does

not. commissioner Hall asked about liability. After more discussion, nO aCtion was taken・

Current Finances: Commissioner Hall said he had concems about the budget. He said

that a computer had be authorized for the Town Hall and it has not been purchased・ Town

manager said they would start a search for one, that it had not been a priority. Mayor

Fowler asked what other concems he had and Commissioner Hall said this was the only

one. commissioner Hall asked ifthe town needed to redo the budget after the outcome of

8/13/2019 BOC meeting 2



the Public Hearing. Mayor Fowler said that could be addressed at the next meeting. Town

Manager said a Public Hearing would need to be held.

The Town’s current assets as ofJuly 3 1, 2019 are: First Citizen-s Bank Checking

$8,249.19; First Citizen-s MM $288,996工3; CressCom Bank’s Savings $218,767.32; No血

Carolina Management Trust is $209,060.58; Petty Cash $50.00・ The town currently has CDs

at First South Bank & Savings totaling $231,056.75, Total assets for the Town are

$980,672.08.

Planning Board Report: Commissioner Garfinkel reported the Plaming Board might

meet september 3. He said Arlington Place wants the town to take over Burton Fams

Road from NC 306 to the signal tower. Commissioner Garfinkel said the Town

Manager has gathered information and the Town has several options. Mayor Fowler

asked ifthis was a Plaming Board issue. Commissioner Garfinkel said no, it is an

issue for the Board of Commissioners. Commissioner Hall requested the Plaming

Board look into this and offer a recommendation. Commissioner Garfinkel said he

would call a Planning Board meeting.

Items for discussion and possible motion or action

Arapahoe Volunteer Fire Dept donation: Commissioner Murphy reported the fire

department gets $160,000 amually from taxes. She said they generally do fund raisers

but they have very few volunteers to help anymore. Commissioner Murphy said they

are in desperate need ofa new truck・ Their #1 fire engine is a 1992 truck. They are

investigating purchasing one for $450,000. They depend on taxes and grants.

Commissioner Murphy said she was not in a position to make a recommendation and

Will report back next month.

Town projects: Commissioner Braly reported the asphalt has been cut on Hardison

Drive, the culvert was picked up from Pamlico Builders and put in the water tower

storage area. As soon as Kemy Heath is finished with his currentjob, he will begin

work on Hardison Drive. The French drain and drop inlets for Phillips Drive need to

be picked up from Agri Supply in Greenvi11e. JeffRoad rights ofway trimming is

魚nally completed・ Mayor Fowler said Tom McCleary called him to thank the town for

such a good job done on JeffRoad. Commissioner Braly said he would pass the

compliment along to Paul Toler ofAmerican Tree. Commissioner Braly said Gary

Taylor would be giving the town an estimate to dig out the Willis Property ditch along

Hardison Drive. That will probably happen in September. Commissioner Braly asked

for approval ofan estimate for the repair on Hardison Drive of$35,460. Paul Toler of

American Tree and Ken Heath ofTotal Land Company will do the work together. He

Said the high cost estimate is because ofthe hand-digging that will be required so no

utility cables will be cut・ This estimate will be sent to FEMA for reimbursement.

Commissioner Murphy asked if FEMA would reimburse the whole thing? Town

Manager said she has no idea what FEMA will reimburse. Commissioner Braly said

he walked with the area with the FEMA inspectors and were aware ofthe issues. He

moved to approved the estimate of $35,460.00. Mayor Fowler asked for a show of

hands: 3 ayes with Commissioner Murphy voting no・

8/13/2019 BOC meeting 3



Misce看laneous:

Mayor Fowler said he was very lmPreSSed with the folks who came out tonight・

Commissioner Garfinkel reiterated he stood with each commissioner. He said he

hopes the club succeeds!

The Town Manager asked for a procedural clarification. She said a negative vote

regarding the Acquisition of Real Property was not requested and ifthis was a

problem. Mayor Fowler said ifthat is an issue, he would call for a vote now.
Commissioner Murphy said ifthe vote is a no, She would still like to continue dialog

with the country club. Mayor Fowler said there is a motion on the floor to purchase

real property・ He asked for all to raise their right hand and all opposed. 3 nays.

Commissioner Hall offered several altematives for the town to consider・ Mayor Fowler said

the Commissioners could revisit the purchase ifthey wanted. Commissioner Braly said he

would like to revisit the question・ Commissioner Murphy said some ofthe folks she talked

with asked what did the residents get from the club and would like to revisit as well.

There being no further business, Commissioner Hall moved to adjoum the regular meeting.

Donna Scott, Town Clerk

8/13/2019 BOC meeting 4


